CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

held on Thursday, 6th November, 2014 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor M J Simon (Chairman) Councillor J Saunders (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors C Andrew, R Domleo, L Jeuda, G Merry and A Moran

Apologies

Councillors S Jones

ALSO PRESENT

Councillor Clowes – Care and Health in the Community Portfolio Holder Councillor Gardiner – Deputy Cabinet Member Councillor K Edwards – visiting member Stefan Pyra – Chairman of Cheshire East Healthwatch Peter Hartwell – Chief Executive of Everybody Sport and Recreation Trust

OFFICERS PRESENT

Mark Wheelton – Commissioning Manager Leisure and Wellbeing Alison McCudden – Client Finance Manager James Morley – Scrutiny Officer

50 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 September be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman

51 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

52 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of party whip

53 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

Eileen Tolbert, a member of Senior Voice for Macclesfield, spoke about concerns being raised in Macclesfield about the possible closure of Hollins View residential care home. She suggested that Hollins View is a valuable facility to the community with excellent staff that treated people as individuals and met their specific needs, helping patients to socialise and interact with others. She did not want to see Hollins View closed.

Jean Bennett, carer to her father and husband, also spoke about the value of Hollins View which provided respite care. The care provided at Hollins View gave her piece of mind that her relatives were being well looked after enabling her to have breaks which enabled her to continue her caring role. She was concerned about any potential closure of Hollins View as there was no suitable alternative being provided in the area. She suggested that three local private respite centres were unsuitable due to enforcement orders or threat of closure meaning none of them were taking new entrants. There was also a facility in Mobberley however she suggested this was too expensive for many people in Macclesfield.

54 EVERYBODY SPORT AND RECREATION - THE FIRST SIX MONTHS

Mark Wheelton, Commissioning Manager for Leisure and Wellbeing, presented a report on the transfer of leisure centre and sports development services to a recently established charitable trust "Everybody Sport & Recreation" (ESAR). Mark was responsible for monitoring the performance of the Trust to ensure it delivered the outcomes expected by the Council outlined by contractual performance indicators.

Peter Hartwell, Chief Executive of ESAR, attending the meeting to provide an overview of the Trust's activity since being established in March 2014 and services and staff being formally transferred to the Trust on 1 May 2014.

During questioning by the Committee the following points rose:

- The Council's contract with ESAR was for the next ten years with an optional five year extension.
- The Council paid an annual management fee to the Trust and revenue from fees and charges to customers was used to fund the services. Any surplus was reinvested into services.
- The Trust bought back some back office services from the Council or some alternative service delivery vehicles, such as ANSA. As the corporate landlord of the leisure and sports assets the Council was paid a management fee.
- ESAR was responsible for setting fees and charges for services but did so in consultation with the Council.
- As the commissioner of the service Mark regularly visited leisure centres and held monitoring meetings with centre managers and Peter as the Chief Executive.
- There had been no change in fees and charges at leisure centres since April 2013.
- Customer visits and attendance at events had previously not been recorded in a uniform way across facilities. A new uniform system was now being used however it was difficult to compare numbers with previous years to evaluate performance. It was suggested that this year's figures should be used as a base line for future years comparison.

- The Trust was developing a system for online booking and payment of exercise classes. It had also introduced a new customer complaints and compliments system and launched an online user survey which would hopefully help the Trust to identify was to improve services.
- The Trust's services had an impact on the Council's strategic outcome 5 (people living well for longer). The Public Health Team monitored the measures for achievement of outcome 5 including the Trust's contribution to it.
- The Trust and Public Health needed to consider a strategy for how to get more people using the Trust's services, and generally taking part in exercise, in order to improve the health and wellbeing of the population.
- As well as operating from its facilities the Trust was putting staff out in the community to provide services across a wider area and encourage more people to be active.
- The Trust needed to develop relationships with schools that had joint use agreements on some leisure facilities such as pools. The schools had agreements with the Council but the Trust needed to become a partner in the relationship to ensure facilities were being used in the best possible way, especially when schools were out of term.
- The Committee was generally pleased with the apparent developments that had taken place in the previous five months. However it was keen to see performance information to ensure the Trust was effectively delivering against performance measures, particularly in relation to customer attendances. It was suggested that a more accurate analysis of the Trust's performance data would be available when its annual report was produced in May 2015.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That the reports be noted.
- (b) That the Committee requests that Mark Wheelton and Peter Hartwell attend a meeting to present Everybody Sport and Recreation Trust's annual report for examination in June 2015.
- (c) That the Committee's comments during the meeting be submitted to Mark Wheelton and Peter Hartwell for consideration.

55 DEFERRED PAYMENT POLICY - CARE ACT 2014 CHANGES

Alison McCudden provided an overview of the Deferred Payment Policy (DPP). The policy needed to be updated following changes to the Council's statutory duties brought about by the Care Act 2014. The policy document attached to the agenda illustrated the changes that needed to be made to the policy.

Most of the changes made to the DPP were not optional. The Council had previously been providing care users with the option to pay for their care through

deferred payments on a discretionary basis however this was a statutory requirement. Changes to the law also meant that the Council was now able to apply interest on deferred payments and charge an administrative fee to cover full cost of providing the deferred payment option.

The following points arose from the Committee's questions:

- Interest was applied to a service users balance 56 days after their death to allow a grace period where the debt could be settled.
- Service users had the option to let their house to a tenant in order to fund their care. Advisors explored various potential payment options with services users not just deferred payments.
- The policy only applied to single people who had been living at home alone, deferred payment could not be arranged against a property where a partner/spouse was still living. Members felt this wasn't clear in the policy and that amendments should be made to rectify this.

RESOLVED:

- (a) That the changes to the Deferred Payment Policy be noted.
- (b) That the Committee supports the Council's Deferred Payment Policy.
- (c) That the Committees comments during the discussion be submitted to Alison McCudden for consideration.

56 FORWARD PLAN

The Committee examined the Forward Plan.

RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan be noted.

57 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee considered its work programme.

It was suggested that in January the Committee should hold a workshop to discuss the role of social and private landlords contribute towards health and wellbeing with the Council's partners and landlords.

RESOLVED – That the work programme be noted and a workshop in January to discuss landlords' role in health and wellbeing be arranged.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 12.20 pm

Councillor M J Simon (Chairman)